Decision No. R98-424

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF COLORADO

DOCKET NO. 98M-053CP

public utilities commission,


complainant,

v.

freedom cabs, inc.,



respondent.

recommended decision of
Administrative Law Judge
Lisa d. hamilton-fieldman
assessing civil penalty
and closing docket

Mailed Date:  April 30, 1998

I. statement

A. The complaint in this matter was initiated by Staff of the Commission against Freedom Cabs, Inc.,(“Freedom Cabs”), by the filing of Civil Penalty Assessment Notice (“CPAN”) No. 98-E-C-3 on January 23, 1998.  The CPAN charged Freedom Cabs with the following violations:  22 violations of Rule 1.2 (Para-graph 391.25) of the Commission’s Safety Rules and Regulations for Common Carriers by Motor Vehicle for Hire, Contract Carriers by Motor Vehicle, Carriers of Household Goods by Motor Vehicle, and Motor Vehicle Carriers Exempt from Regulation as Public Util-ities, 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (“CCR”) 723-15,
 failure to maintain a copy of driver’s annual review in the driver’s file; 22 violations of Rule 1.2 (Paragraph 391.27 (d)) of the Commis-sion’s Safety Rules and Regulations for Common Carriers by Motor Vehicle for Hire, Contract Carriers by Motor Vehicle, Carriers of Household Goods by Motor Vehicle, and Motor Vehicle Carriers Exempt from Regulation as Public Utilities, 4 CCR 723-15, failure to maintain a copy of annual list of violations in the driver’s file; 10 violations of Rule 1.5 (Paragraph 395.8 (a)) of the Commission’s Safety Rules and Regulations for Common Carriers by Motor Vehicle for Hire, Contract Carriers by Motor Vehicle, Carriers of Household Goods by Motor Vehicle, and Motor Vehicle Carriers Exempt from Regulation as Public Utilities, 4 CCR 723-15, failure to require a driver to make a record of duty status; and 10 violations of Rule 1.6 (Paragraph 396.11) of the Commis-sion’s Safety Rules and Regulations for Common Carriers by Motor Vehicle for Hire, Contract Carriers by Motor Vehicle, Carriers of Household Goods by Motor Vehicle, and Motor Vehicle Carriers Exempt from Regulation as Public Utilities, 4 CCR 723-15.  The alleged violations involve several dates and several drivers.  The total potential penalty in this case is  $5,300.00.

B. On March 17, 1998, the parties filed a signed Motion to Approve Stipulation of Settlement and Close Docket.  (Attach-ment 1)  A certified copy of the CPAN was provided to the Admin-istrative Law Judge on March 26, 1998.

C. Pursuant to § 40-6-109, C.R.S., the Administrative Law Judge hereby transmits to the Commission the record of this pro-ceeding, this written recommended decision containing findings of fact and conclusions of law, and a recommended order.
II.
findings of fact and conclusions of law

A. The Respondent, Freedom Cabs, Inc., and Staff have agreed that the Respondent will admit to having committed all 64 of the alleged violations, but that the penalty will be reduced to $2,600.00, so long as the Respondent pays that penalty in 13 $200.00 installments.  The Respondent has already made one such payment, on April 14, 1998.  Future payments will be due no later than the fifteenth of each month.

B. A stipulated fine of $2,600.00 may still seem high for what are, essentially, bookkeeping violations.  However, it is the extensive pattern of the violations that is of concern, and which supports the large fine.  The Commission’s enforcement staff relies upon permit holders to keep accurate and updated records.  When a permit holder fails to keep such records, it makes Staff’s safety and service enforcement functions much more difficult, and complicates proceedings such as this one.  Miti-gating evidence in support of this agreement includes the fact that the Respondent cooperated with the investigation and the fact that the Respondent has already begun payment of the pen-alty.

C. Based on a review of the record and the Stipulation, the Administrative Law Judge concludes that the settlement pro-posed here is supported by the facts and is in the public inter-est, and recommends that the Commission accept it.  Because the Respondent has demonstrated its intent to pay the penalty, there is no need to keep the docket open to ensure compliance.

III.
order

A.
The Commission Orders That:

1.
Respondent Freedom Cabs, Inc., is assessed a penalty of $2,600.00 for 64 violations of the Commission’s Safety Rules and Regulations for Common Carriers by Motor Vehicle for Hire, Contract Carriers by Motor Vehicle, Carriers of Household Goods by Motor Vehicle, and Motor Vehicle Carriers Exempt from Regulation as Public Utilities, 4 Code of Colorado Regulations 723-15, as set forth more fully above and in Attachment 1 to this Order.  Said penalty shall be paid in 13 equal installments of $200.00 each, due no later than the fifteenth day of the month.  Payment has already commenced, and the final payment shall be paid no later than May 15, 1999.  If Freedom Cabs, Inc., fails to make any payment required by this Ordering Paragraph No. 1 on a timely basis, Freedom Cabs, Inc., shall be liable for the entire amount charged in Civil Penalty Assessment Notice No. 98-E-C-3, $5,300.00.

2. Docket No. 98M-053CP is closed.

 
 
3.
This Recommended Decision shall be effective on the day it becomes the Decision of the Commission, if that is the case, and is entered as of the date above.  

 
 
4.
As provided by § 40-6-109, C.R.S., copies of this Recommended Decision shall be served upon the parties, who may file exceptions to it.  

a. If no exceptions are filed within 20 days after service or within any extended period of time authorized, or unless the decision is stayed by the Commission upon its own motion, the recommended decision shall become the decision of the Commission and subject to the provisions of § 40-6-115, C.R.S.

b. If a party seeks to amend, modify, annul, or reverse basic findings of fact in its exceptions, that party must request and pay for a transcript to be filed, or the parties may stipulate to portions of the transcript according to the pro-cedure stated in § 40-6-113, C.R.S.  If no transcript or stip-ulation is filed, the Commission is bound by the facts set out by the administrative law judge and the parties cannot challenge these facts.  This will limit what the Commission can review if exceptions are filed.

 
 
5.
If exceptions to this Decision are filed, they shall not exceed 30 pages in length, unless the Commission for good cause shown permits this limit to be exceeded.

THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF COLORADO



LISA D. HAMILTON-FIELDMAN
________________________________
Administrative Law Judge
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____________________

Bruce N. Smith

Director
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� The Commission’s Safety Rules incorporate the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Rules found in Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations.
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